

Request for Proposal (RFP)

Marketing Services for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024



Ignite/MKTS-DPCH/2024-25/0030/Proc

Date of Issue: June 12, 2024

Ignite National Technology Fund Ministry of Information Technology & Telecom

3rd Floor, Telecom Foundation Complex, 7 Mauve Area, G-9/4, Islamabad Tel.: (+92-51) 910 7441 – 46, Fax: (+92-51) 910 7447

ignite.org.pk

Table of Contents

P	ART –	- A: DEFINITIONS, INSTRUCTIONS & INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS	1
1	D	efinitions	2
2	M	Nandatory Eligibility Criteria Checklist	3
3	lg	nite – National Technology	4
4	In	nstructions for Bidders	4
5	Bi	idding Document	5
	5.1	Contents	5
6	Pı	reparation of Proposal	5
	6.1	Language of the Proposal	5
	6.2	Proposal Currency	5
	6.3	Period of Validity of Proposal	5
	6.4	Supporting Documents	6
	6.5	Cost of Preparing Proposal	6
	6.6	Proposal Documents	6
	6.7	Bid Security	7
	6.8	Format and Signing of Proposal	7
	6.9	Taxes	7
7	Sı	ubmission, Receipt, and Opening of Proposal	7
8	E۱	valuation and Award Process	9
	8.1	Evaluation of Proposals	9
	8.2	Evaluation of Technical Proposals	9
	8.3	Financial Proposal	11
	8.4	Combined Scores	11
	8.5	Award of Agreement	11
9	A	vailability of Skilled Resources	12
1()	Confidentiality	12
1:	1	Conflict of Interest	12
12	2	Fraud and Corruption	13
13	3	Clarification Request/Amendment	13
P	ART –	- B: TERMS OF REFERENCE (TOR)	14
14	4	Statement of Purpose	15
	14.1	Background and Introduction	15

i

	14	.1.1	Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Hands-on Training Workshops	. 15
	14	.1.2	Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Competitions	. 16
	14.2	Goa	ls/Objectives	. 16
15		Scope	of Work	. 17
	15.1	Digi	tal Pakistan Cyber Security Hackathon 2024 (Hand-on Training Workshops/Hackathon	
(Com	petitio	n Events & Award Ceremony)	. 17
	15	.1.1	Electronic Media (TV)	. 17
	15	.1.2	Electronic Media (Radio)	. 18
	15	.1.3	Social/ Digital Media:	. 18
	15	.1.4	Print Media/PR Campaign	. 20
	15	.1.5	Branding, Promotional Collateral, Photography, Videography & Allied Activities	. 20
16		Delive	rables	. 23
17		Projec	t Duration / Timeline	. 23
18		Payme	ent Schedule	. 23
19		Copyri	ghts	. 23
PΑ	RT –	C: FOI	RMS TO BE SUBMITTED WITH PROPOSAL	. 24
Te	chnic	al Pro _l	oosal - Standard Forms	. 25
	Form	C1. C	overing Letter	. 25
	Form	C2. Fi	rm/Bidder Profile	. 26
	Form	C3. R	elevant Experience of the Firm/Bidder	. 27
	Form	C4. Pr	roposed Activities Plan, Methodology & Execution Timeline for Marketing Campaigns	. 32
	Form	C5. R	oles and Responsibilities of Consortium/JV Partners	. 38
Fin	ancia	al Prop	oosal - Standard Forms	. 39
	Form	C6. C	overing Letter	. 39
			ummary of Cost	
			Method - Annexure A	
			t - Annexure B	
			- Annexure C	
	20.16	,		



PART – A: DEFINITIONS, INSTRUCTIONS & INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS

1 Definitions

In this Request for Proposal (RFP) document, unless the context provides otherwise:

Bidder	A firm agency or party or concertium which will submit		
Diduel	A firm, agency or party or consortium which will submit proposal inresponse to this RFP		
Company	Ignite, registered under Section 42 of the Companies Act 2017,		
Company	(repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984) with its registered office		
	at 3 rd Floor, TF Complex, G-9/4, Islamabad, Pakistan		
Consortium /Joint Venture	Consortium is an association of more than one legal entity,		
,	which have come together to jointly respond to the RFP. A Joint		
	Venture isan enterprise formed by two or more individuals or		
	companies for the purpose of submitting the bid. All members		
	of a consortium/join venture (i.e., the leader and all other		
	members)		
	are jointly and severally liable to the Contracting Authority.		
Cybersecurity	Protection of information systems (hardware, software and		
	associated infrastructure), the data hosted by them, and the		
	services they provide, from unauthorized access, harm or		
	misuse.		
Digital Pakistan	This includes Hackathon Competition events and Hand-on		
Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024	training Workshops in totality unless mentioned otherwise.		
Date of Issue	The date on which the RFP titled "Marketing Services for		
Date of issue	Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024" is issued by		
	Company to solicit bids from potential Bidders		
Draft Funding Agreement	An agreement concluded between Company and the Successful		
0 0 1	Bidder. (Annexure B)		
ISO 27001	Standard for Information Security Management defined by		
	International Standard Organization for managing information		
	security in a Company.		
Terms of Reference (ToR)	The description of formal work & activities under the		
	"Marketing Services for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity		
	Hackathon 2024" to be completed by the Successful Bidder in accordance with the Contract signed between Successful		
	Bidder and the Company		
Successful Bidder	A bidder who has been awarded the contract pursuant to the		
	RFP titled "Marketing Services for Digital Pakistan		
	Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024".		
Lead Bidder	The lead bidder is the lead entity, in case of consortium or joint		
	venture that is principally participating in submission of the		
	proposal and should submit a letter of intent for purpose of		
F 1 8 4	identification.		
Event Management	The event management company is the entity who will be		
Company	planning, organizing, and executing Digital Pakistan		
	Cybersecurity Hackathon competition 2024 events. It will also		
	be responsible for close coordination with the successful bidder		

to obtain the marketing, outreach and artwork designs for all
print and digital collaterals.

2 Mandatory Eligibility Criteria Checklist

Before the Bidders submit their Proposals, within the stipulated time mentioned in this Request for Proposal document, bidders are required to make sure that following mandatory requirements of this RFP document are fulfilled. In case of bids being submitted as Consortium / Joint Venture (JV), Lead Bidder's documents will be evaluated against Mandatory Eligibility Criteria. These requirements mustbe furnished at the time of submission of Proposal. Non-submission of any one of the following applicable requirements shall result in disqualification:

#	Mandatory Eligibility Criteria Checklist	Mark 2 / X		
1.	Proof of Certificate of Incorporation or Registration or equivalent			
2.	Proof of NTN Certificate (If Applicable, please check ☑, otherwise put a Cross ☑ in the Mark Column)			
3.	Proof of GST Certificate (If Applicable, please check ☑, otherwise put a Cross ☑ in the Mark Column)			
4.	4. Proof of FTN certificate / Tax exemption certificate (for public sector entity) (If Applicable, please check ☑, otherwise put a Cross ☒ in the Mark Column)			
5.	In case of bid being submitted as consortium/Joint Venture (JV), attach			
	consent letter of each partner organization clearly specifying its roles and			
	responsibilities inthe project. Letter should be issued by the competent			
	authority of the partner			
	organization.			
6.	Original affidavit (not older than one month) on Stamp Paper(s) of worth			
	Rs.100 ormore that Bidder is not insolvent, bankrupt and is not blacklisted			
	or debarred by PPRA, Government, Semi-Government, Private,			
	Autonomous body or any other international organization.			
7.	Original affidavit (not older than one month) on Stamp Paper(s) of worth			
	Rs.100 ormore that the Bidder is an active tax payer and has submitted its			
	tax return for the preceding fiscal year. Tax payer's list serial number			
	(Active Taxpayers List (ATL) is			
	downloadable from FBR's website) is also to be mentioned.			
8.	Two separately sealed envelopes:			
	Envelope #1 shall clearly bear the name "TECHNICAL PROPOSAL –			
	Marketing Services for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024"			
	Two hard copies of Technical Proposal, one marked as Original and one			
	marked as Copy* must be submitted with one soft copy of the original			
	technical proposal in USB. Bidders are to make sure that Financial Proposal is			
	not part of the Technical Proposal in any form			

	*Additional hard copy of Technical Proposal is not a mandatory requirement.			
9.	Envelope #2 shall clearly bear the name "FINANCAL PROPOSAL – Marketing			
	Services for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024"			
	Financial Proposal in hard copy must be submitted with one soft copy of			
	the same in USB. Soft copy must be in MS-Excel format with formulas. (The			
	hard copy and soft copy of Financial Proposal must be sealed in Envelope #			
	2 and should not be part of Technical Proposal in any form).			
10.	Bid Security of PKR 700,000/- to be placed in Envelope # 1 along with			
	mandatory documentation.			
11.	Bidders should submit their proposal on EPADs https://eprocure.gov.pk In			
	case a bid is not submitted on EPADs, it will not be accepted by the Company			
	in hard form.			
1				

Note:

Bidders are required to submit filled, signed & stamped copy of the above checklist along with the Proposal. All of the supporting documents of the mandatory eligibility criteria shall be attached with checklist in same section of the technical proposal. Requirement No. 6 & 7 above, are required to be submitted on separate stamp papers.

3 Ignite – National Technology

Ignite, hereafter referred to as the "Company" has been incorporated with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017 (Former Companies Ordinance 1984) by the Ministry of IT & Telecom, Government of Pakistan. The Company is mandated to fund research and development in Information and Communication Technology (ICT), and its commercialization, with the mission to transform Pakistan's economy into knowledge-based economy. Further information about the Company is available at www.ignite.org.pk

4 Instructions for Bidders

This document contains all the information pertinent to this solicitation, and governs the preparation and submission of Proposals. The technical & financial forms to be filled by Bidder for this assignment are annexed with this RFP document. Proposals must be submitted by the deadline stipulated in this RFP, completed on the formats provided by the Company, with supporting documents, according to the guidelines given in the section titled **Instructions and Information for Bidders**. Proposals will be evaluated by bid evaluation committees constituted by the Company. Selection of Bidders will be on Quality and Cost Based Selection methodology as provided in the Bidding Document.

5 Bidding Document

5.1 Contents

The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, general conditions, forms, terms and specifications contained in the RFP document and its annexures. Failure to comply with instructions will be at the Bidder's risk and may affect the evaluation of the Proposal. Proposals that do not comprehensively address the ToRs and other requirements may be rejected. Inability to comply with applicable instructions, general conditions of contract, terms and specifications may lead to rejection of Proposal.

Submission of Technical and Financial Proposals against RFP document means in principle acceptance of attached Draft Agreement by the Bidder. During negotiations with successful Bidder only minor changes, proposed by the Bidder, can be made in the attached agreement. Company reserves the right to accept or reject any proposed changes by the successful bidder. Company reserves the right to make changes to the draft contract in order to ensure better & smooth implementation of the project.

After issuance of letter of acceptance, the successful Bidder is expected to sign the agreement as soon as possible. If successful Bidder is not responsive and does not sign the agreement within a reasonable time, maximum one (1) month after issuance of the letter of acceptance, the Company reserves the right to terminate and nullify the bid award.

In the event of non-compliance with the ToRs of the RFP document and obligations contained in the funding agreement, the Company may terminate the funding agreement by providing ten (10) day's written notice to the successful bidder without any further obligation or compensation on the part of the Company.

6 Preparation of Proposal

6.1 Language of the Proposal

Proposals prepared by the Bidders and all correspondence and documents relating to the Proposal exchanged between the Bidders and the Company shall be in writing and in English Language, except where otherwise specified.

6.2 Proposal Currency

All prices shall be quoted in Pakistani Rupees (PKR) and all payments will be made in Pakistani Rupees (PKR).

6.3 Period of Validity of Proposal

Proposals shall remain valid for 180 days from the date of advertisement as provided in the RFP document. Within the original validity of the bids, Company may request the bidders to extend their bid validity for another period, such extension shall be for the period equal to the period of the original bid validity. The bidder who chooses not to extend their bid validity as may be required by Company; their bid will be deemed withdrawn without forfeiture of their bid bonds or securities.

Company may, at its exclusive discretion extend the deadline for the submission of the bids in which case all rights and obligations of the Company and the bidders previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended. Supporting Documents

While preparing the Technical Proposal, the Bidder shall ensure that it provides the Company with documentary evidence. Bid evaluation committees will evaluate proposals solely on the basis of documentary evidence submitted in accordance with evaluation criteria described in this RFP.

6.4 Supporting Documents

While preparing the Technical Proposal, the Bidder shall ensure that it provides the Company with documentary evidence. Bid evaluation committees will evaluate proposals solely on the basis of documentary evidence submitted in accordance with evaluation criteria described in this RFP.

6.5 Cost of Preparing Proposal

The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with or relating to the preparation and submission of their Proposal, and Ignite shall not be liable in any manner whatsoever for the same or for any other costs or expenses incurred by a bidder in preparation or submission of the Proposal, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the Selection Process.

6.6 Proposal Documents

The Proposal, in binder form, with serial number of each page should comprise the following:

Technical Proposal:

- a) Checklist (Mandatory Documents required with the Proposal) Page 3
- b) Technical Proposal Submission Form C1
- c) Firm/Bidder Profile Form C2
- d) Relevant Experience of the Firm/Bidder Form C3 (A, B, C, D, E)
- e) Proposed Activities Plan, Methodology & Execution Timeline for Marketing Campaign Form C4 (A, B, C, D, E)
- f) Roles & Responsibilities of Consortium/JV Partners Form C5

Technical Proposal should detail the capability and experience of delivering the services specified in the ToR. Bidder should submit details of maximum three of their most relevant/similar nature assignments for technical evaluation using the prescribed format. Assignments submitted beyond the given number will not be considered.

Technical Proposal should not contain any financial proposal information. Cost and financial estimates need to be provided in a separate sealed envelope clearly indicating Financial Proposal. The Technical Proposal must not contain any pricing information whatsoever on the services being offered. **Non-compliance will lead to rejection of the Proposal**.

Financial Proposal:

Financial Proposal must consist and submitted on the following formats:

- a) Covering Letter Form C6
- b) Summary of Cost Form C7

Electronic form of Technical Proposal will also be provided in a separate USB, that will be included in the sealed envelope containing the written hard copy of Technical Proposal.

Electronic form of Financial Proposal in MS-Excel will be provided in a separate USB that will be included in the sealed envelope containing the written hard copy of Financial Proposal.

6.7 Bid Security

Bid security of **PKR 700,000/-** in the form of Call Deposit/Bank Draft (refundable) drawn in favor of IGNITE-National Technology Fund (FTN/NTN: 2939308-6) is to be placed in Envelope#1 along with the mandatory documentation

6.8 Format and Signing of Proposal

The Proposal shall contain no interlineations, erasures, or overwriting, except, as necessary to correct errors made by the Bidder, in which case such corrections shall be initialed by Bidder's authorized person. The Proposals shall be clear and elaborate. Different parts of Proposals shall be separated using color separators, flags or tags.

6.9 Taxes

Quoted costs should be inclusive of all applicable (direct & indirect) taxes. While submitting their bids, bidders shall be responsible to include all applicable duties / taxes / levies etc. (Federal and/or Provincial) in their financial proposal. Omission if any shall be the sole responsibility of the bidder. Financial Proposal will be scored based upon the bid amount inclusive of all taxes. All prices must be quoted in PKR. Amount allocated for taxes in the financial bid shall not be allocated towards any other expense/budget head during currency of the Contract.

Note: The Technical Proposal must not contain any pricing information whatsoever on the services being offered. Non-compliance will lead to rejection of the Proposal.

7 Submission, Receipt, and Opening of Proposal

- 7.1. Proposals will be accepted and evaluated using Single Stage, Two Envelope Procedure. (Separate sealed envelopes for Technical and Financial Proposals). The process is further defined at Annexure A.
- 7.2. The original Proposal shall contain no interlineations or overwriting, except, as necessary to correct errors made by the bidder, in which case such corrections shall be initialed by the bidder's authorized person. The proposal shall be clear and elaborate. All pages of the Proposals (Technical & Financial) must be numbered. Submission letters for both Technical and Financial Proposals, must be in the attached format (Form C1 & C7) in separate envelopes.
- 7.3. The Bidder's Organization Head or an authorized representative on his/her behalf shall initial and stamp all pages of the original Technical and Financial Proposals. In case of authorized representative, an authorization shall be provided which shall be in the form of a written power of attorney accompanying the Proposal or in any other form demonstrating that the representative has been duly authorized to sign.
- 7.4. Hard copies of Technical Proposal shall be sent to the address listed in this Bidding Document. All required copies of the Technical Proposal are to be exact replicas of the original. If there are discrepancies between the original and copies of the Technical Proposal, the original governs.
- 7.5. Bidder is required to submit one original and one copy of Technical Proposal along with all supporting documents.
- 7.6. One **USB** containing an electronic copy (labelled 'Electronic Copy') of all Proposal documents in PDF format (**excluding the Financial Proposal**), must be provided with the Technical Proposal. In the event of any discrepancy between the Original Proposal and the Electronic Copy, the former

- shall be deemed as the accurate Proposal. If Financial Proposal is copied to the USB containing Technical Proposal, the entire Proposal shall stand rejected.
- 7.7. The Technical Proposal shall be placed in a sealed envelope clearly marked "TECHNICAL PROPOSAL" followed by the name of the assignment "Marketing Services for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024" and the name of Bidder. Similarly, the Financial Proposal shall be placed in a separate sealed envelope clearly marked "FINANCIAL PROPOSAL" followed by the name of the assignment "Marketing Services for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024" and the name of Bidder, with a warning "DO NOT OPEN WITH THE TECHNICAL PROPOSAL". The envelopes containing Technical and Financial Proposals shall be placed into an outer envelope and sealed. This outer envelope shall bear the submission address and title of the assignment mentioned in this document, and the name of the Bidder, and clearly marked "DO NOT OPEN BEFORE SUBMISSION DEADLINE". Company shall not be responsible for misplacement, losing or premature opening of the outer envelope if not properly sealed and marked as stipulated. Such negligence may result in rejection of the Proposal. If the Financial Proposal is not submitted in a separate sealed envelope duly marked as indicated above, this will constitute grounds for rejection of the Proposal.
- 7.8. The Proposal must be sent to the following address and received by the Company not later than the time and the date specified elsewhere in this Bidding Document:

Position: Manager Procurement	
Telephone:	+9251 910 7441 - 6 Ext. 135
Mobile:	+92306 199 1234
Fax:	+9251 910 7447
Email Address:	procurement@ignite.org.pk
Postal Address: Ignite- National Technology Fund	
	3 rd Floor, Telecom Foundation Complex, 7 Mauve Area, G-
	9/4, Islamabad

- 7.9. Bidders must submit their Proposal to the Company by registered post/ courier or by hand to the official postal address of the Company before or on the submission deadline specified elsewhere in this Bidding Document.
- 7.10. Bidders must submit their proposal on EPADs https://eprocure.gov.pk/
- 7.11. Any Proposal received by the Company after the deadline for submission shall be returned unopened.
- 7.12. Company reserves the right to accept or reject any or all of the Proposals submitted at any time in accordance with applicable PPRA rules and the stipulations contained in this document.
- 7.13. Company shall open Technical Proposal thirty minutes after the submission deadline. The envelopes with the Financial Proposal shall remain sealed and securely stored in the custody of Company and will be opened as per the tentative timeline specified elsewhere in this document.

7.14. Key Activities & Timeline

The tentative timeline set out herein represents the Company's best estimate of the schedule that will be followed. If an activity contained in this schedule, such as the opening date, is delayed, the rest of the schedule will be shifted by the same number of days.

The tentative schedule of activities is as follows:

#	ACTIVITY/MILESTONE	TIMELINE
1	RFP Issuance	June 12, 2024
2	Deadline for receiving queries / questions	June 21, 2024
3	Pre-Bid Conference (Location: Ignite Office, 3 rd Floor, TF Complex, 7 Mauve Area, G-9/4, Islamabad)	June 24, 2024 at 1100 hours
4	Response to queries/questions related to RFP	June 25, 2024
5	Proposal Submission Deadline	July 2, 2024 at 1500 hours
6	Opening of Technical Proposals (in front of Bidders present at 3 rd Floor, TF Complex, 7 Mauve Area, G-9/4,Islamabad)	July 2, 2024 at 1530 hours
7	Opening of Financial Proposals (in front of Bidders present at 3 rd Floor, TF Complex, 7 Mauve Area, G-9/4,Islamabad)	TBD*
8	Award of Contract	TBD

^{*}Manager Procurement will communicate the date and time for the financial bid opening totechnically qualified bidders only.

8 Evaluation and Award Process

8.1 Evaluation of Proposals

- 8.1.1. From the time the Proposals are opened to the time the evaluation report is announced, Bidders should not contact the Company on any matter related to its Technical and/or Financial Proposal. Any effort by the Bidder to influence the Company in the examination, evaluation, ranking of Proposals, and recommendation for award of Agreement may result in the rejection of the Bidder's Proposal. However, the Company may contact the Bidder for seeking clarification of any aspect of Technical Proposal or demand any missing information.
- 8.1.2. Evaluators of Technical Proposals shall have no access to Financial Proposals until the technical evaluation is concluded.
- 8.1.3. Overall evaluation shall be carried out based on weighted average methodology wherein technical evaluation will carry 60% and financial evaluation will carry 40% weightage respectively.

8.2 Evaluation of Technical Proposals

8.2.1. Payment will be made to the successful individual as per defined payment schedule. Ignite must be acknowledged in all publications/communications activities for the project.

- 8.2.2. During the technical evaluation no amendments in the Proposals shall be permitted. Each responsive Proposal will be given a technical score. If Proposal fails to achieve the minimum qualifying technical score indicated in the RFP document, it will not qualify for financial evaluation stage. Bidders who obtain at least 60% in technical evaluation criteria will qualify and Financial Proposals would be opened only for technically qualified Bidders.
- 8.2.3. Financial Proposals of those Bidders obtaining less than **60% in Technical Evaluation** shall remain un-opened and will be returned to the Bidders. An evaluation committee appointed by the Company will evaluate Technical Proposals on the basis of their compliance with the RFP and by applying the evaluation criteria and the point system, specified below:

S No.	Technical Evaluation Criteria	Sub Marks	Total
			Marks
I.	Firm/Bidder Profile (Registered age, and Financial		20
	position) –(Form C2)		
	 Registered Age (Lead Bidder) 	10	
	a. 7 and Above Years (10 Marks)		
	b. 4+ to Less than 7 Years (7 Marks)		
	c. 2+ to Less than 4 years – (4 Marks)		
	d. Less than 2 Years – (0 Marks)		
	2. Financial Position of the Lead Bidder	10	
II.	Relevant Experience of the Firm/Bidder - (Form C3)		40
	Experience of managing marketing campaigns		
	commensurate with scale mentioned in the scope of work		
	of this RFP for tech industry events of national level such as		
	exhibitions, hackathons & award ceremonies:		
	a. Branding, Promotional Collateral, Videography &	8	
	Photography (Form C3-A)		
	b. Print Media/PR Campaign (Form C3-B)	8	
	c. Electronic Media Campaign on Radio (Form C3-C)	8	
	d. Electronic Media Campaign on TV (Form C3-D)	8	
	e. Social/Digital Media Campaign (Form C3-E)	8	
III.	Proposed Activities Plan, Methodology & Execution		40
	Timeline for Marketing Campaigns (Form C4)		
	 a. Branding, Promotional Collateral, Videography & Photography (Form C4-A) 	8	
	b. Print Media/PR Campaign (Form C4-B)	8	
	c. Electronic Media Campaign on Radio (Form C4-C)	8	
	d. Electronic Media Campaign on TV (Form C4-D)	8	
	e. Social/Digital Media Campaign (Form C4-E)	8	
		al Marks	100
	Minimum Qualification Marks	Required	60

8.3 Financial Proposal

- 8.3.1. After the evaluation of Technical Proposals, the Company shall communicate to each Bidder their respective technical score. Company shall notify Bidders who have secured minimum qualifying technical score, about the date, time and location for opening of Financial Proposals, within the bid validity period. Bidder's attendance at the opening of Financial Proposals is optional. The opening date shall be set so as to allow interested Bidders sufficient time to make arrangements for attending the Financial Bid opening.
- 8.3.2. Bidders whose technical scores do not meet minimum qualifying criteria, will be informed accordingly and their Financial Proposal will be returned unopened to them, after signing of contract with Successful Bidder.
- 8.3.3. At the outset of the Financial Proposal Opening session, and before actual opening of Financial Proposal, technical score of qualified Bidders shall be read aloud.
- 8.3.4. A Financial Evaluation Committee shall evaluate the Financial Proposal.
- 8.3.5. Provided that the bid is substantially responsive, the committee shall correct arithmetical errors on the following basis:
 - a. if there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the total price that is obtained by multiplying the unit price and quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the total price shall be corrected
 - b. if there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and
 - c. if there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) above
- 8.3.6. If the Bidder that submitted the lowest evaluated bid does not accept the correction of errors, its bid shall be disqualified.
- 8.3.7. Quality and Cost Based Selection (QCBS) method will be used for evaluation of Proposal.

 The lowest evaluated Financial Proposal will be given the maximum financial score of 40 points.

8.4 Combined Scores

- 8.4.1. Technical Score (ST) shall be calculated as follows: (Technical score obtained by the Bidder/Total Technical score) x 60.
- 8.4.2. Financial Score (SF) shall be calculated as follows: (Lowest Bidder's total cost/ Bidder's total cost) x 40.
- 8.4.3. Combined Score (Total Score) = ST + SF
- 8.4.4. All Bidders will be ranked based upon the combined technical and financial score.

8.5 Award of Agreement

After completing negotiations, the Company shall award Agreement to the selected Bidder (Most advantageous). After agreement signature, the Company shall return the unopened Financial Proposals of the non-responsive Bidders.

9 Availability of Skilled Resources

- 9.1. The Successful Bidder is bound to provide the services of professional staff proposed in Technical Proposal. In case of non-availability of any proposed professional staff during the contract period, the Bidder will provide valid reason and documentary justification. The Bidder is bound to provide the substitute professional staff with same technical strength with no delay after mutual agreement of both parties i.e., the Bidder and the Company. In such a case, it is at the discretion of the Company to accept or reject the Bid.
- 9.2. No member of professional staff, including Project Manager, should be a proposed team member in any other bid (currently invited or under review for selection purposes) submitted to the Company for another project.

10 Confidentiality

The Company shall keep all information regarding the bid evaluation confidential until the announcement of the evaluation report under PPRA Rule no. 41.

11 Conflict of Interest

Without limitation on the generality of the foregoing, Bidder shall be considered to have a conflict of interest and their Proposal shall not be entertained and shall be rejected under any of the circumstances set forth below:

a) Conflicting assignments

• The Bidder (including its Personnel) or any of its affiliates shall not be hired for any assignment that, by its nature, may be in conflict with another assignment to be executed for the same or for another Client.

b) Conflicting Relationships

- The Bidder (including its Personnel) or any of its affiliates that has a business or family relationship with a member of the Company Board, Management, or staff who is directly or indirectly involved in the preparation of Terms of Reference, selection process of third party evaluation services and/or supervision of the Agreement may not be awarded an Agreement unless conflict stemming from this relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to the Company Board throughout the selection process and the execution of the Agreement.
- The Bidder has an obligation to disclose any situation of actual or potential conflict that
 impacts their capacity to serve the best interest, or that may reasonably be perceived as
 having this effect by notifying the Company in writing. Failure to disclose said situations may
 lead to disqualification of the Bidder or the termination of its Agreement.
- Current employees of the Company shall not work as and for the Bidder.

12 Fraud and Corruption

- 12.1. The Company requires the Bidder/s participating in provision of Service/s to adhere to the highest ethical standards, both during the selection process and throughout the execution of an agreement. In pursuance of this policy, Company defines, for the purpose of this paragraph, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - a) "Corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence the actions of any employee of the Company in the selection process or in agreement execution;
 - b) "Fraudulent practice" means a misrepresentation or omission of facts in order to influence a selection process or the execution of an agreement;
 - "Collusive practices" means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders with or without the knowledge of the Client, designed to establish prices at artificial, non-competitive levels, etc.;
 - d) "Coercive practices" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their property to influence their participation in a procurement process, or affect the execution of an agreement.
- 12.2. The Company will reject a Proposal for award if it determines that the Bidder recommended for award has directly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive or coercive practices in competing for the agreement to be executed pursuant to RFP. The Company may also impose penalties on the Bidder, declaring it ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, for Company funding, if at any time it determines that the Bidder has, directly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive or coercive practices in competing for, or in executing, a Company funded project.
- 12.3. The Company will have the right to inspect the bidding firm's accounts and records and other documents relating to the submission of Proposals and agreement performance, and have them audited by auditors appointed by the Company.

13 Clarification Request/Amendment

- 13.1. The Bidder can request a clarification in the RFP document up to the date indicated in the RFP document. Any request for clarification must be sent in writing, or by standard electronic means to the Company's e-mail address indicated in the RFP document. The Company will respond in writing or by standard electronic means as mentioned in the table of activities and will place responses on the Company's website under FAQ's for understanding of all potential Bidders after June 25, 2024.
- 13.2. At any time before the submission of Proposals, the Company may amend the RFP document by issuing an addendum in writing or by standard electronic means. The addendum shall be published in the local newspaper and uploaded at PPRA and Company web site, and revised RFP document will be uploaded on Company's and PPRA website.



14 Statement of Purpose

Marketing Services for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024

14.1 Background and Introduction

Ministry of IT & Telecom and its associated company, Ignite, is conducting 4th nationwide Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024. Ignite had taken a step in light of National Cybersecurity Policy 2021 and successfully conducted Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity competitions in year 2021, 2022 and 2023. Ignite also conducted Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hands-on Training Workshop in 2023. The competition had attracted a diverse range of participants, including students, enthusiasts, and professionals.

This year, Ignite is envisaging to take the competition to the next level. Prior to the hackathon competitions, Hands-on Training Workshops will be conducted in different cities of Pakistan (KARACHI, SUKKUR, HYDERABAD, RAHIM YAR KHAN, MULTAN, LAHORE, FAISALABAD, GUJRANWALA, SIALKOT, RAWALPINDI, PESHAWAR, HARIPUR, QUETTA, MIRPUR, ISLAMABAD). Participation is expected from university students, freelancers, professionals, and hackers from all over the country. The hackathon competitions will be conducted in KARACHI, LAHORE, MULTAN, QUETTA, PESHAWAR, ISLAMABAD followed by the Final and Awards Ceremony in Islamabad.

14.1.1 Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Hands-on Training Workshops

Ignite has planned to conduct Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Hands-on Training Workshops and Hackathon Competitions/Qualifiers events as per details appended. Hands-on Training Workshops will be conducted physically at following fifteen (15) cities of Pakistan in parallel, during 15 August – 15 October, 2024 tentatively:

S No.	Cities	Workshop Venues	Duration of Each Workshop
1	KARACHI	To be decided	5 days
2	SUKKUR	To be decided	3 days
3	HYDERABAD	To be decided	3 days
4	RAHIM YAR KHAN	To be decided	3 days
5	MULTAN	To be decided	3 days
6	LAHORE	To be decided	5 days
7	FAISALABAD	To be decided	3 days
8	GUJRANWALA	To be decided	3 days
9	SIALKOT	To be decided	3 days
10	RAWALPINDI	To be decided	3 days
11	PESHAWAR	To be decided	3 days
12	HARIPUR	To be decided	3 days
13	QUETTA	To be decided	3 days
14	MIRPUR	To be decided	3 days
15	ISLAMABAD	To be decided	5 days

Table 14.1.1

14.1.2 Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Competitions

Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Competitions will be conducted at different cities of Pakistan, per following details during <u>15 October - 15 November,2024</u> tentatively.

S No.	Competition	Duration	Scale/Level of Event
1	Lahore Qualifier	2 days	Launch Event:
			Opening ceremony, talks & panel
			discussions, closing Ceremony,
			Guests, Speakers
			Adjacent Hall: Hackathon Competition
2	Karachi	2 days	Mega/Major Event:
	Qualifier		Opening ceremony, talks & panel
			discussions, closing Ceremony,
			Guests, Speakers
			Adjacent Hall: Hackathon Competition
3	Islamabad	2 days	Hackathon Competition, Closing
	Qualifier		ceremony and certificates distribution
4	Peshawar	2 days	Hackathon Competition, Closing
	Qualifier		ceremony and certificates distribution
5	Quetta Qualifier	2 days	Hackathon Competition, Closing
			ceremony and certificates distribution
6	Multan	2 days	Hackathon Competition, Closing
	Qualifier		ceremony and certificates distribution
7	Islamabad	2 days	Hackathon Competition, Closing
	Grand Finale		ceremony and certificates distribution
8	Islamabad	1 day	Opening ceremony, talks & panel
	Award		discussions, closing Ceremony,
	Ceremony		Guests, Speakers, Awards
			Distribution

Table 14.1.2

Foregoing in view, panel advertising agencies are invited to submit proposals for 360 degree Marketing Services for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Hands-on Training Workshops and Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Competitions and Award Ceremony.

14.2 Goals/Objectives

The main objectives of this assignment are but not limited to the following:

- a) To generate maximum outreach and increase awareness of Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon brand through branding, promotional giveaways, electronic and digital/social media marketing campaign.
- b) To skillfully convey the intended message about the importance of cybersecurity and Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon brand.

15 Scope of Work

The successful bidder will be responsible for strategizing, planning, and executing an impactful, outcome oriented, aggressive, tech and cybersecurity community targeted 360-degree marketing campaign for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 including but not limited to the following activities:

Electronic Campaign (TV & Radio)	TV: TV tickers campaign, TV advertisement, Slot in morning	
	show, Mentions by morning shows anchors etc.	
	Radio: radio spots, exclusive radio programs and mentions	
	by radio RJs etc.	
Print Media/PR Campaign	Press releases and articles in leading English and Urdu	
	newspapers in Pakistan etc.	
Social/Digital Media Campaign	Press releases and blog posts on top Pakistani tech blogs,	
	photography & videography coverage, social media	
	marketing content development and publishing (Facebook	
	live coverage with OB camera setup, static posts,	
	photographs, animations, gifs, testimonial videos,	
	tech/cybersecurity influencers videos, paid social media	
	campaigns/sponsored posts, google ads, web banners etc.)	
Branding, Promotional Collateral,	Designing, printing and installation of creative branding	
Videography, Photography & Allied	collateral including backdrops & standees at Digital	
Activities	Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon Hands-on Training	
	Workshops 2024 only.	
	Designing and production of shields, certificates, flyers,	
	brochures, posters, outdoor pole streamers, videography,	
	photography etc.	

Target Audience

The target audience of 360-degree marketing campaign for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 includes but not limited to the following:

- Public/Government Sector (Ministries, Government officials, Government entities etc.)
- Private Sector (IT Industry, Cybersecurity Companies, Banking Sector, Tech Companies etc.)
- Academia (Universities, Institutes, IT Students, IT/Cybersecurity Faculty etc.)
- Tech Enthusiasts, IT Professionals, IT/Cybersecurity Influencers
- Cybersecurity Professionals/Cybersecurity Communities
- IT Students, Freelancers etc.

15.1 Digital Pakistan Cyber Security Hackathon 2024 (Hand-on Training Workshops/Hackathon Competition Events & Award Ceremony)

15.1.1 Electronic Media (TV)

The successful bidder will be responsible for strategizing, planning, and executing a comprehensive (pre events & post events) TV campaign for the Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024. The proposed campaign must be in line with the timelines of Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 events

including Hand-on Training Workshops, Hackathon competitions and Award Ceremony. The campaign should include but not limited to the following activities:

- i. Develop and execute a TV tickers & campaign.
- ii. Develop and execute a TV advertisement and its campaign.
- iii. Secure slots in morning shows for the Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024
- iv. Ensure mentions by morning show anchors.
- v. Handle the concept designing, scripting, and production of all TV content.
- vi. Select top channels based on viewership to air the TV tickers, advertisement(s), and morning shows slots during prime time.
- vii. Develop a detailed content calendar with scheduled TV campaign activities.

The campaign will be meticulously planned and executed to maximize reach and brand awareness throughout the entire duration of the Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024.

15.1.2 Electronic Media (Radio)

The successful bidder will be responsible for strategizing, planning, and executing a comprehensive (pre events & post events) Radio campaign for the Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 including but not limited to the following activities:

- i. Develop and execute a radio spots campaign.
- ii. Develop and execute an exclusive radio program.
- iii. Ensure mentions by radio RJs.
- iv. Handle the concept designing, scripting, and production of all radio content.
- v. Selection of leading radio channels and airing the Radio spots across Pakistan including the remote areas, in a suitable time slots in morning (8-10 am) or evening (5-9 pm)
- vi. Develop a detailed content calendar with scheduled Radio campaign activities.

The campaign will be meticulously planned and executed to maximize reach and brand awareness throughout the entire duration of the Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024.

15.1.3 Social/ Digital Media:

The successful bidder will be responsible for strategizing, planning, and executing a comprehensive, impactful, outcome oriented, aggressive, tech and cybersecurity community targeted Social Media campaign for the Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024. The successful bidder will submit a complete social media marketing calendar mentioning total number of posts, posts per day, post type, platforms and estimated reach of each post in proposed plan may including but not limited to the following activities:

- a. Manage Social Media Channels: Create and post the content on already established social media channels of Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon & Ignite – National Technology Fund, mentioned below:
 - i. https://www.facebook.com/cybersecurepk
 - ii. https://twitter.com/cybersecure pk
 - iii. https://www.facebook.com/ignitentf
 - iv. https://twitter.com/ignitentf
 - v. https://www.linkedin.com/company/ignitentf

- vi. https://www.instagram.com/lgnite.NTF/
- vii. https://www.youtube.com/c/ignitentf
- b. Social media content development/production, publishing and promotion on above mentioned social media channels may include but not limited to the following:
 - i. **Engaging Visual Content:** Design eye-catching graphics, banners, and infographics highlighting key aspects of the hackathon. Share teaser videos, behind-the-scenes footages, promotional trailers, short highlight video clips of workshops and competition events etc. with editing, animations/gifs reels, engaging posts captions, speaker announcements, registration reminders, Announce partnerships with sponsors, tech companies, and educational institutions etc.
 - ii. **Hashtag Campaigns:** Develop unique and memorable hashtags (e.g., #DPCyberHackathon2024) and encourage participants to use it. Monitor and engage with posts using the hashtag to amplify reach.
 - iii. Video Testimonials: Recording, editing, publishing & promotion of Video testimonials of Ministry of IT & Telecom officials (IT Minister, IT Secretary, Additional Secretary IT, Member IT etc.), Ignite officials (CEO Ignite, GMs of Ignite, Cybersecurity Hackathon Project Managers etc.), hand-on training workshops top performing participants, hand-on training workshops selective trainers, Vice Chancellors/Deans/Department Heads of workshops venues i.e universities, hackathon competitions selective participants of each event, hackathon competitions selective speakers, hackathon competitions selective guests, Qualifiers rounds winners video testimonials, figure-out and create videos of "Success Stories of Hackathon" during the events etc.
 - iv. **Pictures and Videos:** Publishing real time photographs and complete photo albums of all events. Editing, publishing and promoting short highlight video clips of all hands-on training workshops and Hackathon competition/qualifier events etc.
 - v. **Countdown and Reminder Posts:** Post regular countdown updates leading up to the event. Share reminder posts about key dates, registration deadlines, and special announcements.
 - vi. **Interactive Content:** Conduct polls, quizzes, and surveys related to cybersecurity to engage the audience. Use interactive stories on Instagram and Facebook to create excitement.
 - vii. **Live Sessions and Webinars:** Host live Q&A sessions with registrants, participants, speakers to discuss the event, Organize pre-event webinars on cybersecurity trends and tips etc.
 - viii. **User-Generated Content:** Encourage participants to share their preparation journey, tips, and experiences using the event hashtag. Feature participant stories and testimonials on your social media channels.
 - ix. **Content Calendar:** Develop a detailed content calendar with scheduled posts, stories, and engagement activities (pre-event, during events & post events)
 - x. **Collaborate with Communities and Groups:** Promote the Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 in relevant LinkedIn and Facebook groups, and cybersecurity forums etc.
 - xi. **Sponsored Ads and Promotions:** Run targeted ads on Facebook, Instagram, Google, LinkedIn, and Twitter to reach a broader audience. Use demographic and interest-based targeting to attract potential participants.

- xii. **Highlight Prizes and Opportunities:** Showcase the prizes, awards, and opportunities available for winners and participants. Create posts detailing the benefits of participating in the hackathon.
- xiii. **Influencer Collaborations:** Partner with cybersecurity experts, tech influencers, and prominent personalities in the digital space to promote Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024. Arrange interviews with influencers to discuss the initiative.
- xiv. **Facebook Live Coverage:** Facebook live coverage (with high quality mobile camera on Qualifier rounds (normal scale events). Facebook live coverage (with OB cameras setups at Karachi, Lahore Qualifiers & Award Ceremony)
- xv. **Post-Event Engagement:** Share highlights, winner announcements, and key moments from each event (hands-on training workshops and hackathon competitions). Encourage participants to share their experiences and feedback.
- xvi. **Press Releases and Blog Posts:** create & publish press releases and blog posts on leading Pakistani tech blogs
- xvii. **Web Banners:** create & publish Web Banners on leading Pakistani tech blogs and relevant news websites.

Note: The successful bidder must have its own high speed dedicated internet facility, videos recording gadgets, FB live mic, OB Cameras etc. for execution of smooth social media activities

15.1.4 Print Media/PR Campaign

The successful bidder will be responsible for strategizing, planning, and executing a comprehensive print media/PR campaign for the Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 including but not limited to the following activities:

- i. Press releases with picture and articles in leading English and Urdu newspapers in Pakistan. Pre events, during events, post events coverage.
- ii. Magazine Features: Publish articles/interviews in leading Tech Magazines in Pakistan

15.1.5 Branding, Promotional Collateral, Photography, Videography & Allied Activities

The successful bidder will be responsible for designing, production, installation & delivery of branding/promotional collateral for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 including but not limited to the following:

S No.	Activities	Total Quantity (tentative)	Competitions/Cities
	Backdrops: Designing, printing, installation and dismantling of one Backdrop per workshop at each Venue of Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity 2024 Hands-on Training Workshops only (as per Table 14.1.1). The designs of every backdrop will be in accordance with the venue/city.	25 Backdrop Size: 9'x12' tentatively Note: The size of backdrops may vary as per venue schematics.	Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity 2024 Hands-on Training Workshops (as per Table 14.1.1).
	X Standees: Designing, printing, installation and dismantling of two x-standees per workshop at each Venue of Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity 2024 Hands-on Training Workshops only (as per Table 14.1.1). The designs of standees will be in accordance with the venue/city.	50 Size: Standard size X- Stands	Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity 2024 Hands-on Training Workshops (as per Table 14.1.1).
	Designing and printing of certificates with single card casing and envelopes.	200 Certificate: 300 gm art card with digital printing and single card casing Envelop: 128 gm matt paper without printing	Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 (as per Table 14.1.1 & 14.1.2)
	Shields with Black Presentation Box	75 shields	Lahore & Karachi Qualifier events, Awards Ceremony event. To be distributed among Chief Guest / Sec IT / MoITT Senior Officials / Guest Speakers/ Hackathon Management Team
	Plastic Cheques for Hackathon Winners	5 plastic cheques Foam Board 1.5'x3' with high definition digital printing	For Awards Ceremony at Islamabad
	Outdoor Pole Streamers	300	For Awards Ceremony at Islamabad

Photography & Videography Coverage:

- Development of Training Videos: The successful bidder will coordinate with the Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hands-on Training Partner and record the video lectures (to be given by Training Partner Trainers) on entire Hands-on Training content. The successful bidders will be responsible for recording the video lectures at the selected venues in consultation with Hands-on Training Partner. The successful bidder will develop a proper training videos to be uploaded on Cybersecurity Hackathon Portal and interesting clips will be posted on Ignite social media channels YouTube, Facebook etc. to get maximum traction of viewers on the said portal.
- The successful bidder will ensure video coverage of Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Handson training workshops 2024 including testimonials of trainers, trainees, VCs, HoDs and few parents at each venue as mentioned in Table 14.1.1. The videos clips will cover the entire activities of the workshops.
- The successful bidder will capture quality photographs through professional photographers on entire Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024. Complete video recording of Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon Competition events (Lahore Qualifier, Karachi Qualifier, and Awards Ceremony or any other as per requirement). Quality video clips recording of Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon Competition events (Multan, Quetta, Peshawar, Islamabad Qualifier, Islamabad Grand Finale) including opening ceremony, competition activities, closing ceremony etc.
- Roundup Video: Create a Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 roundup video show reel (5-7 mins) with voice over, script & captions, from recorded master videos. This roundup video will be further utilized to be played on SMD during Award Ceremony and propagation on social media channels etc.
- **Ignite Show Reel:** Create a show reel of Ignite initiatives (5-7 mins) with voice over, script & captions. This video will be skillfully created using fresh shoots & stock videos and images of Ignite. This roundup video will be further utilized to be played on SMD during Award Ceremony and propagation on social media channels etc.

The successful bidder will also be responsible for the following allied activities inter-alia:

- Designing, production, editing, recording etc. related to entire media content required for above mentioned media campaigns.
- The successful bidder will be responsible for the transportation and delivery of all required items, as per above mentioned scope of work, at the respective event venue timely.
- The successful bidder will have a focal point dedicated to Ignite, with full availability, during meetings for finalization of designs and marketing activities etc.
- The successful bidder will have no issue for designs iterations and changes, as per feedback from Ignite.
- Attend coordination meetings called by the Ignite office and support the holding of the meetings.
- Ensure all required audio-visual equipment and lighting is available at the venue as required for marketing campaigns.
- Development of regular report/update, throughout the organization period, to the Event Coordinator.

• The successful bidder will provide artwork and designing support for all print and digital collaterals. The successful bidder will work in close coordination with the event management company throughout the entire events.

16 Deliverables

The key deliverables/milestone of the project are as follows.

- a. <u>Deliverable 1:</u> On completion of all marketing activities for "Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Hands-on Training Workshops", the successful bidder will deliver complete and detailed activities report along with all content/collateral related to the marketing activities.
- Deliverable 2: On completion of all marketing activities for "Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity
 Hackathon 2024 Competitions & Awards Ceremony", the successful bidder will deliver complete
 and detailed activities report along with all content/collateral related to the marketing activities.

17 Project Duration / Timeline

Successful Bidder is expected to conduct all marketing activities during Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon Hands-on Training Workshops, Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 competitions events and Award Ceremony in July-October 2024 timeframe tentatively.

18 Payment Schedule

Payment of each event will be made after its completion with satisfactory services in accordance with the contract. Tentative schedule for disbursements is given below.

9	S No	Project Milestone	Amount Payable
	1	Deliverable 1	As per actual invoice of satisfactory marketing activities conducted
	2	Deliverable 2	As per actual invoice of satisfactory marketing activities conducted

19 Copyrights

All developed content/publishing related to the project (both hard and soft formats) will be the sole property of Ignite National Technology Fund.



Technical Proposal - Standard Forms

Form C1. Covering Letter

[Location, Date]

To:

Manager Procurement
Ignite National Technology Fund
3rd Floor, TF Complex, 7 Mauve Area
G-9/4, Islamabad.
Email: procurement@ignite.org.pk

,

Sir,

We, the undersigned, offer to provide the services for execution of "<u>Marketing Services for Digital</u> <u>Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024</u>" in accordance with your Request for Proposal dated [ADVERTISEMENT DATE]. We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical Proposal and Financial Proposal sealed under a separate envelope.

Our Technical Proposal shall be binding upon us subject to the modifications resulting from Contract negotiations, up to expiration of the validity period of the Proposal, which is 180 calendar days from the date of advertisement.

We understand you are not bound to accept any Proposal you receive.

We remain,

Yours sincerely,

Authorized Signature:
Name and Title of Signatory:
Name of Firm:
Address:

Form C2. Firm/Bidder Profile

S #	Crite	eria	
1.	Prof	file of the agency:	
	i.	Registered Age of Firm (in years) –	
		Duly verified from certificate of	
		incorporation or equivalent	
	ii.	Names of Owners/ CEO/ Directors/	
		Partners/ Managers	
2.	i.	Location of Firm Office/Sub Office	
	ii.	Number of Branches and Their	
		Contact Numbers	
	iii.	Total number of Employees	
3.	Fina	ncial Position	
	i.	Name of Banks	
	ii.	Copy of Audited Annual Accounts	
		(of last 3 years)	
	iii.	Tax Registration (NTN/STN/FTN)	

Form C3. Relevant Experience of the Firm/Bidder

Describe marketing campaigns managed for similar national level/tech industry events such as exhibitions, hackathons & award ceremonies (maximum up to 3 events) in following tables. Please attach evidence. Only verifiable assignments will be evaluated

Form C3-A: Branding, Promotional Collateral, Videography & Photography

Submit artworks and pictures of branding material, promotional collateral, created for similar national level/tech industry events such as exhibitions, hackathons & award ceremonies (maximum up to 3 events) in following table. Please attach evidence. Only verifiable assignments will be evaluated.

S. No	Event Name	Self/ Client Name	Backdrops, Banners, Standees Designs	Flyers, Brochures, Posters Designs	Videography (Submit videos of the event)	Photography (Submit pictures of the event)
1.						
2.						
3.						

Form C3-B: Print Media/PR Campaign

Submit print media/PR campaign executed for similar national level/tech industry events such as exhibitions, hackathons & award ceremonies (maximum up to 3 events) in following table. Please attach evidence. Only verifiable assignments will be evaluated.

S. No	Event	Self/	Event Advertisement Published	Event Press Releases/Articles	Event Articles/Interviews/Any
	Name	Client Name		Published in newspapers	Related Content Published in
					Magazines
			(Provide newspaper clippings/clickable	(Provide newspaper	
			URLs)	clippings/clickable URLs of	(Provide magazine clippings/clickable
			Also mention Names & Stations of	published content)	URLs of published content)
			newspapers utilized.		
1.					
2.					
3.					

Form C3-C: Electronic Media Campaign on Radio

Submit electronic media campaign (On Radio) executed for similar national level/tech industry events such as exhibitions, hackathons & award ceremonies (maximum up to 3 events) in following table. Please attach evidence. Only verifiable assignments will be evaluated.

S. No	Event Name	Self/ Client Name	Campaign Type	Recording of Radio Spots/Radio Program	Mention Names of Radio Channel on Which Content was On-aired
			(Mentioned the type of Campaign: Radio Spots/Radio Programs	(Submit Playable Audio Files or clickable URLs of playable audio files)	(Submit copies of release orders)
1.					
2.					
3.					

Form C3-D: Electronic Media Campaign on TV

Submit electronic media campaign (On TV) executed for similar national level/tech industry events such as exhibitions, hackathons & award ceremonies (maximum up to 3 events) in following table. Please attach evidence. Only verifiable assignments will be evaluated. Only verifiable assignments will be evaluated.

S. No	Event Name	Self/ Client Name	Campaign Type (TV Tickers/TV Program/Morning Show)	Recording of TV Tickers/TV Program/Morning Show (Playable Video Files)	TV Channel Names On-aired (Submit copies of release orders)
1.					
2.					
3.					

Form C3-E: Social/Digital Media Campaign

Submit Social/Digital Media Campaign executed for similar national level/tech industry events such as exhibitions, hackathons & award ceremonies (maximum up to 3 events) in following table. Please attach evidence. Only verifiable assignments will be evaluated.

S. No	Event Name	Self/ Client Name	Visual Content/ Static Post (Submit Posts Designs or URLs of published posts)	Videos/Clips/Animatio ns (Submit Videos/Clips/Animatio n or URLs of published posts)	Published on Tech Blogs/Websites	Names of Social Media Platforms Utilized along with Total Number of Posts	Influencers Engagement for Event (Submit event specific Influencers Videos/Testimonials/ Posts)
1.							
2.							
3.							

Form C4. Proposed Activities Plan, Methodology & Execution Timeline for Marketing Campaigns

Submit proposed Activities Plan, Methodology & Execution Timeline for Marketing Campaign for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024, per following:

Form C4-A: Branding, Promotional Collateral, Videography & Photography:

Provide complete proposed activities plan, methodology, execution & delivery timeline for branding, promotional collateral, Videography & Photography.

S. No	Activity Name	Proposed Designs (provide artworks)	Methodology	Execution & Delivery Timeline
1.	Backdrops			
	(for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon Hands-on Training Workshops only)			
2.	X-Stands			
	(for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon Hands-on Training Workshops only)			
3.	Flyers/Brochures/Posters/Streamers			
	(for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Competitions & Award Ceremony)			
4.	Certificates			
	(for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon Hands-on Training Workshops & Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Competitions)			
5.	Shields			

_				
	(for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Competitions & Awards Ceremony)			
6.	Outdoor Pole Streamers			
	(for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Awards Ceremony) Note: All relevant NOCs is the sole responsibility of the successful bidder.			
7.	Photography & Videography		(Submit strategy, methodology	
	(for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 entire events)	N/A	of photography and videography services for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 entire events, mentioning number of photographers, videographers etc. at each event	
8.	Add proposed activities in rows below			
0	in accordance with the scope of work			
9.	Add proposed activities in rows below in accordance with the scope of work			
	in accordance with the scope of work			

Form C4-B: Print Media/PR Campaign

Provide complete proposed activities plan/strategy, methodology and execution timeline for print media campaign, in accordance with the scope of work mentioned in this RFP document. The activities plan should be presentable, self-explanatory and must include but not limited to the following information.

S. No	Activity Name	Mention Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Event Names against proposed activities, in accordance with section 14.1.1 and 14.1.2	Total Number of Newspapers/ Magazines with Names	Total Stations of Newspaper/Mag azines	Circulation of Newspapers /Magazines	Methodology	n & Delivery Timeline
1.	Press Releases						
2.	Articles						
3.	Add proposed activities in rows below in accordance with the scope of work						

Form C4-C: Electronic Media Campaign on Radio

Provide complete proposed activities plan/strategy, methodology and execution timeline for Electronic Media Campaign on Radio, in accordance with the scope of work mentioned in this RFP document. The activities plan should be presentable, self-explanatory and must include but not limited to the following information.

S. No	Activity Name	Mention Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Event Names against proposed activities, in accordance with section 14.1.1 and 14.1.2	Total No. of Radio Channels along with their Names and Stations	Activity Frequency /Number of Insertions	Duration & Time Slot	Radio Channel Listenershi p	Methodology	Execution & Completion Timeline
1.	Radio Spots							
2.	Radio Program							
3.	RJ Mentions							
4.	Add further proposed activities in rows below in accordance with the scope of work							
5.	Add further proposed activities in rows below in accordance with the scope of work							

Form C4-D: Electronic Media Campaign on TV

Provide complete proposed activities plan/strategy, methodology and execution timeline for Electronic Media Campaign on TV, in accordance with the scope of work mentioned in this RFP document. The activities plan should be presentable, self-explanatory and must include but not limited to the following information:

S. No	Activity Name	Mention Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 Event Names against proposed activities, in accordance with section 14.1.1 and 14.1.2	with their Names and Stations	Activity Frequency/Numb er of Insertions and Durations	Time Slot	Channel Viewership	Methodology	Execution & Completion Timeline
1.	TV Tickers							
2.	TV Commercial							
3	Morning Shows							
4.	News Items							
	Add further proposed activities in rows below in							

accordance with the scope of				
work				

Form C4-E: Social/Digital Media Campaign

Provide complete proposed activities plan/strategy, methodology and execution timeline for Social/Digital Media Campaign, in accordance with the scope of work mentioned in this RFP document. The activities plan should be presentable, self-explanatory and must include but not limited to the following information:

S. No	Activity Name	Social Media Platforms and Tech blogs/websites to be Used	Total Number of Posts	Posts Type	Total Estimated Posts Reach/Views	Methodology	Execution & Completion Timeline
1.	Engaging Visual Content						
2.	Video Testimonials						
3.	Blog Posts/Articles						
3.	Influencer Collaborations						
	Add proposed activities in rows below in accordance with the scope of work						
	Add proposed activities in rows below in accordance with the scope of work						

The proposed plan must also include complete social media activities/posts calendar with estimated reach/views of each post, along with the other necessary information.

Form C5. Roles and Responsibilities of Consortium/JV Partners

Applying As:

[] Standalone Legal Entity	[] Consortium (Please attach relevant document)
[] Joint Venture (Please attach relevant document)	[] Other (Please specify & attach relevant document)

Lead Partner Details:

Name of Partner:	
Focal Person:	
Contact Details:	(Telephone, Email and Postal Address)

Partner - 1:

Name of Partner:	
Focal Person:	
Contact Details:	(Telephone, Email and Postal Address)
Roles and Responsibility in this Project:	

Partner – 2:

Name of Partner:	
Focal Person:	
Contact Details:	(Telephone, Email and Postal Address)
Roles and Responsibility in this Project:	

In case of more than two partners you may add further sheets.

Note: Please attach MoU and/or consent letter of each partner clearly specifying its roles and responsibilities in the project. Letter should be issued by the competent authority of the partner organization.

Financial Proposal - Standard Forms

Form C6. Covering Letter

[Location, Date]

To:

Manager Procurement
Ignite National Technology Fund
3rd Floor, TF Complex, 7 Mauve Area
G-9/4, Islamabad.
Email: procurement@ignite.org.pk

Sir,

We, the undersigned, offer to provide services to <u>Marketing Services for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity</u> <u>Hackathon 2024</u> in accordance with your Request for Proposal dated [ADVERTISEMENT DATE] and our Proposal (Technical and Financial Proposals). Our attached Financial Proposal is for the sum of [Amount in words and figures]. This amount is inclusive of all the local taxes, duties, fees, levies and other charges applicable on our company, our sub-contractors and collaborations under the Pakistani law.

Our Financial Proposal shall be binding upon us subject to the modifications resulting from Contract negotiations, up to expiration of the validity period of the Proposal, which is 180 calendar days from the date of advertisement.

We understand you are not bound to accept any Proposal you receive.

We remain, Yours sincerely,

Authorized Signature:
Name and Title of Signatory:
Name of Firm:
Address:

Form C7. Summary of Cost

S. No	Description	Amount before taxes	Amount including taxes
		(PKR)	(PKR)
a.	Electronic Media Campaign (TV)		
b.	Electronic Media Campaign		
	(Radio)		
c.	Social/ Digital Media Campaign		
d.	Print Media/PR Campaign		
e.	Branding, Promotional Collateral,		
	Photography, Videography		
	Services		
	Total: (a+b+c+d+e)		

Procurement Method - Annexure A

Single Stage Two Envelope Procedure for Bidding Public Procurement Rules 2004

- i. The bid shall comprise a single package containing two separate envelopes. Each envelope shall contain separately the Financial Proposal and the Technical Proposal;
- ii. The envelopes shall be marked as "FINANCIAL PROPOSAL" and "TECHNICAL PROPOSAL" in bold and legible letters to avoid confusion;
- iii. Initially, only the envelope marked "TECHNICAL PROPOSAL" shall be opened;
- iv. The envelope marked as "FINANCIAL PROPOSAL" shall be retained in the custody of the procuring agency without being opened;
- v. The procuring agency shall evaluate the Technical Proposal in a manner prescribed in advance, without reference to the price and reject any Proposal which do not conform to the specified requirements; Minimum qualification for shortlisting of technical proposals is **60 marks**.
- vi. During the technical evaluation no amendments in the Technical Proposal shall be permitted;
- vii. The Financial Proposals of bids shall be opened publicly at a time, date and venue announced and communicated to the Bidders in advance;
- viii. After the evaluation and approval of the Technical Proposal the procuring agency, shall at a time within the bid validity period, publicly open the **Financial Proposals of the technically accepted bids only**. The Financial Proposal of bids found technically non-responsive shall be returned unopened to the respective Bidders; and
- ix. Weightage of technical and financial evaluation will be **60% and 40%** respectively. Financial score will be calculated as follows:
- x. Financial score = Lowest bid/ Bidder's bid x 40%
- xi. The bidder with the highest combined score will be selected.

<u>DRAFT - AGREEMENT FOR MARKETING SERVICES FOR DIGITAL PAKISTAN CYBERSECURITY</u> HACKATHON 2024

This Agreement for <u>"PROVISION OF MARKETING SERVICES FOR DIGITAL PAKISTAN CYBERSECURITY HACKATHON 2024"</u> (the "Agreement") is made at Islamabad on this <u>[Insert the date]</u> day of <u>[Insert Month]</u> 2024.

Between

Ignite, a company incorporated under section 42 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (*now TheCompanies Act, 2017*), having its registered office at 3rd Floor, Telecom Foundation Complex, Mauve Area, G-9/4, Islamabad, Pakistan (hereinafter referred to as the **"Company"**, which expression shall where the context permits, mean and include its administrators, successors-ininterest and permitted assigns) of the First Part;

And

[Insert name of successful bidder], a company incorporated and existing under the laws of Pakistan, having its registered office at [insert address] (hereinafter referred to as the "Service Provider" which expression shall where the context permits, mean and include its administrators, successors-in-interestand permitted assigns) through its duly authorized representative namely [insert designation] of the Service Provider, of the Second Part;

The Company and the Service Provider may hereinafter collectively be referred to as the "Parties" and individually as a "Party".

RECITALS

WHEREAS

- **A.** The Company requires Services to manage events as mentioned in RFP.
- B. The Service Provider agrees to provide Services for Marketing Services for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024 (hereinafter referred to as "Provision of Marketing Services for Digital Pakistan Cybersecurity Hackathon 2024") in accordance with the terms described in the RFP which is attached herewith to this Agreement as Annexure A.
- **c.** All services and duties, incidental or necessary thereto shall be conducted and performed diligently and completely and in accordance with professional standards of conduct.
- D. Against the provision of satisfactory and acceptable services the Service Provider shall receive agreed compensation as described in the payment disbursement plan mentioned in the RFP. Against the provision of satisfactory and acceptable Services, the Service Provider shall receive agreed compensation as provided in the "Payment Schedule" attached herewith as Annexure-B.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants hereinafter set forth and for other good and valuable consideration the adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged by the Parties and the mutual benefits to be derived therefrom, the representations and warranties, covenants, conditions and promises contained herein below and intending to be legally bound, the Parties agree as follows:

1 <u>DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS</u>

The Following words and expressions shall have the meaning defined hereunder:

- **1.1 "AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS"** means the documents listed in Article 5 of this Agreement.
- **1.2 "APPROVED"** or **"APPROVAL"** means approved in writing by the Company and/or the ServiceProvider.
- **1.3 "DAY"** means calendar day of the Gregorian calendar.
- 1.4 "DELIVERABLES" means the deliverables specified whether in draft or final form to be provided by the Service Provider as provided in the RFP under the heading "Scope of Work" therein.
- 1.5 "INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS" means rights in intellectual property, if any, arising from the Scope of Work, deliverables, reports, or work provided by the Service Provider under this Agreement.
- "REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL" or "RFP" means the request for proposal titled [Insert Title Of RFP] issued dated [Insert Date] by the company for the purpose of this Agreement.
- **1.7 "SERVICES"** means the services to be performed by the Service Provider for the successful completion of the assigned tasks as specifically mentioned in the RFP and attached herewith as **Annexure-A**.
- **"SINGULAR AND PLURAL"** Words importing singular include the plural and vice versa and words importing masculine gender include the feminine gender.

2 OBLIGATIONS OF THE COMPANY:

- 2.1 The Company agrees to provide the Service Provider reasonable access to all necessary personnel to answer any questions about any problems reported by the Company regarding the Services.
- **2.2** The Company shall provide such information for the term of this Agreement as may be required by the Service Provider as far as reasonably practicable and without liability on thepart of the Company.

3 OBLIGATIONS OF THE SERVICE PROVIDER

3.1 The Service Provider shall conform with and abide by the provisions of all federal, provincial local laws, rules and regulations and any other laws for the time being in force in Pakistan including all regulations or by-laws of any local or other duly constituted authority within Pakistan which may be applicable to the performance of the Agreement and the rules and regulations of public bodies and companies whose

- property or rights are affected or may beaffected in any way by the works (hereinafter referred to as "state laws") and shall give all notices and pay all fines required to be given or paid thereby and shall keep the Company indemnified against all penalties of every kind for breach of any of the same.
- 3.2 The Service Provider shall submit invoice as per the Payment Schedule, mentioned in the RFP. The Company after verification shall pay to the Service Provider the amount stated in the invoice within fifteen (15) working days of the receipt of the invoice. In the event of any discrepancy in the invoice submitted by the Service Provider, the Company shall be authorized to reject the invoice submitted by the Service Provider. The Company as of right shall then instruct the Service Provider to rectify the same and the Service Provider shall within 14 days correct the invoiceand submit the same to the Company. All payments to be made to the Service Provider shallbe subject to applicable tax and other deductions in accordance with laws of Pakistan.
- **3.3** The Service Provider shall remain responsible for execution of the work as mentioned in Annexure A.
- 3.4 The Service Provider shall maintain detailed records of all acts, content etc. done in relation to the performance of this Agreement and, at the Company's request, shall either make all such records available for inspection or shall provide the Company with true and accurate copies thereof.
- **3.5** The Service Provider shall appoint a dedicated professional team along with a focal person, having relevant experience and specialized qualification for the performance of this Agreement;
- 3.6 The Service Provider shall perform and deliver the Deliverables listed within Annexure A with care, skill, diligence, honesty and integrity and with generally accepted standards of good practice and prudence.
- 3.7 The Service Provider shall complete and deliver all Deliverables and perform all its obligations under this Agreement within the time stipulated in this Agreement.
- **3.8** The Service Provider shall fully comply with any representations, warranties and undertakings provided in the Agreement Documents relating to the quality and contents of the Deliverables.
- **3.9** The Service Provider shall use its reasonable endeavors for the successful and timely completion of the activities, tasks or deliverables which are not quantified or for which no measurable indices are given in the Agreement Documents.
- **3.10** The Service Provider shall comply with all applicable laws, as they exist in Pakistan from time to time, including safety and security standards applicable to the activities and tasks covered under this Agreement.
- **3.11** The Service Provider shall apply for, obtain and maintain at all times all permissions, consents, licenses, leases, approvals, authorizations and the like required from any private or public sector entity for performance of its obligations under this Agreement.

4 PRIMARY CONTACTS

The Parties shall appoint one (1) individual within their organizations to serve as the primary contact between each other in order to receive or provide any requisite assistance or

support.

[Please insert details including name contact No. email etc. of the Primary Contact of Ignite]

[Please insert details including name contact No. email etc. of the Primary Contact of Service Provider].

5 AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS

The Preamble and the following documents/Annexures, form an integral part of this Agreement. In the event of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement and its Annexures, the terms of the Agreement shall take precedence.

i) The Agreement or subsequent amendments through the Addenda;

ii) Annexure A: RFP

iii) AnnexureB:

Disbursement Plan (to be finalized after selection of the bidder)

6 EFFECTIVE DATE OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall become effective from [xxxx] and shall remain valid until [xxxx] ("Term") unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The Agreement can be extended for another Term after the expiry date on the terms and conditions mutually agreed upon between the Parties subject to the Company giving ten (10) days advance notice to the Service Provider to that effect.

Regardless of any provision in this Agreement, unless terminated earlier, if the Marketing services Project is not completed within the stipulated Term, the Agreement shall automatically extend until the Marketing services Project's finalization. The Service Provider will be obligated to continue providing services under the same terms and conditions outlined in Annexure-A. Such extension shall be formally approved in writing by both Parties, specifying the duration of the extension.

7 CONFIDENTIALITY

- 7.1 The Parties shall not disclose the Agreement, or any provision thereof, or any specification, plan, drawing, sample or information furnished by or on behalf of either Party in connection therewith, to any person other than a person employed by either Party in performance of the Agreement. Disclosure to any such employed person shall be made in confidence and shall only extend as far as may be necessary for purposes of such performance.
- 7.2 Either party shall not, without mutual consent, make use of any documents or information except for purposes of performing the Agreement. Upon becoming aware of any loss, unauthorized use or disclosure of the Company's information, the Service Provider shall immediately notify the Company of such loss, unauthorized use or disclosure and indemnify the Company for the same.

7.3 Both Parties agree that, regardless of the expiration or termination of the Agreement for any reason, the provisions concerning Confidentiality shall remain in effect for five (5) years after the Agreement's expiry or termination or unless the Parties agree otherwise to discontinue its effect.

8 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

The Service Provider hereby acknowledges and agrees that any and all intellectual property rights generated as a result of the performance of Services under this Agreement, Including the Scope of Work provided in this RFP, shall be the absolute property of the Company.

9 TAXES AND DUTIES

The Service Provider shall fully comply with all applicable tax laws in Pakistan, including rules, regulations and other requirements. The Company is authorized to deduct, at the source, any withholding tax obligations as required by the prevailing tax laws of Pakistan.

10 ASSIGNMENT AND SUB-CONTRACT

The Service Provider shall not alter, assign, or subcontract any part of this Agreement without obtaining prior written consent from the Company. If such consent is granted, it shall not absolve the Service Provider of its obligations and liabilities under this Agreement. Furthermore, the Service Provider remains fully accountable for the actions, omissions, and performance of any subcontractors or assignees, as well as those of its own agents, employees, and personnel.

11 PRICES AND PAYMENTS

- 11.1 The total price of the Agreement including taxes shall not be in excess of PKR [xxx] (Insert the amount in Words), inclusive of all applicable taxes.
- **11.2** The Agreement price set forth in this Agreement is firm and final till execution of this Agreement and receipt of entire services by the Company in acceptable condition.
- **11.3** No variation is acceptable to the Company with the exception of any price adjustment authorized by the conditions of this Agreement.
- **11.4** Applicable taxes will be deducted when processing payments and deposited with Federal Board Revenue (FBR).

12 **TERMINATION**

Termination for Default

- **12.1** The Company may, without prejudice to any other remedy for breach of Agreement, by written notice of default ("**Default Notice**") sent to the Service Provider, terminate this Agreement in whole or in part, if:
 - 12.1.1 the Service Provider fails to deliver any or all of the services within the time period(s) specified in the Agreement or any extension thereof granted by the Company;
 - 12.1.2 the Service Provider fails to perform any other obligation(s) under the

Agreement;

12.1.3 the Service Provider, in either of the above circumstances does not cure its failure within a period of fifteen (15) days (or such longer period as the Company may authorize in writing) after receipt of the Default Notice from the Company.

13 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

The Company reserves the right to terminate the Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time for its convenience, provided that it provides thirty (30) days' prior written notice to the Service Provider or after payment of a proportionate fee, subject to the Service Provider's satisfactory performance as determined by the Company.

14 AMENDMENT

No alteration, waiver or change in any of the terms of this Agreement will be effective unless made in writing and duly executed by an authorized officer or representative of each of the Parties.

15 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement together with the attached Annexes contains the entire terms and conditions and constitutes the entire Agreement between the Parties and cancels and supersedes any previous oral or written agreements, representations or arrangements, express or implied, by the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.

16 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS

- **16.1** The Service Provider is and shall remain at all times an independent Contractor or and shall be fully responsible for its own acts or defaults (including those of its employees or agents).
- **16.2** The Service Provider, along with its employees, agents, or representatives, shall refrain from engaging in any activities that could reasonably lead any individual to believe that they are acting as employees, agents, or representatives of the Company.
- **16.3** Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute a partnership or other profit-sharing agreement between the Parties.

17 **SURVIVAL**

Certain clauses of this Agreement, including but not limited to Indemnification, Confidentiality, and Dispute Resolution, as well as any other clauses inherently intended to extend beyond the termination or expiry of this Agreement, shall remain in effect for a period of Ten (10) years following such termination or expiry.

18 **INDEMNIFICATION**

The Service Provider agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Company and its officers, agents, and employees, from any claim, real or imaginary, brought against the Company or its officers, agents, or employees, alleging damage or injury arising out of the

subject matter of this Agreement; provided, however, that such provision shall not apply to the extent that the damage or injury results from proximate fault of the Company or its officers, agents, or employees.

19 DISPUTE RESOLUTION AND GOVERNING LAW

Any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of or in connection with this Agreement shall be initially resolved through negotiation by Parties. If dispute(s) remain unresolved for a period of 30 days, it shall then be settled by the sole arbitrator appointed by both the Parties as mutually agreed in accordance with the Arbitration Act 1940 and the rules made thereunder. The venue of the arbitration shall be Islamabad, Pakistan. The award made by the arbitration process shall be final and binding on the Parties and may be enforced in any court of competent jurisdiction. Each Party shall bear the arbitration cost own its own.

The validity of interpretation and construction of this Agreement and of each part hereof shall be governed by the Laws of Pakistan. Both Parties shall comply with all applicable laws of Pakistan.

20 FORCE MAJEURE

For the purposes of this Agreement "Force Majeure" means an event which is beyond the reasonable control of a Party and which makes a Party's performance of its obligations under this Agreement impossible or so impractical as to be considered impossible under the circumstances.

The failure of either Party to fulfil any of its obligations under this Agreement shall not be considered to be breach of or default under this Agreement insofar as such inability arises from anevent of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures in order to carry out the terms and conditions of this Agreement and has informed the other Party as soon as possible about occurrence of such an event.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties to this Agreement through their duly authorized representatives have executed this Agreement in two (2) counterparts and on the days and dates set forth above, and certify that they have read, understood, and agreed to the terms and conditions of this Agreement as set forth herein.

Signed for & on behalf of the Company	Signed for & on behalf of the Service Provider		
Ву:	Ву:		
Title: Chief Executive Officer	Title:		
CNIC:	CNIC:		
Date:/2024	Date:/2024		

Witness - 1	Witness - 1
Signature:	Signature:
Name:	Name:
Designation:	Designation:
CNIC:	CNIC:
Milhora 2	CIVIC.
Witness - 2	Witness - 2
Signature:	Circul
Name:	Signature:
	Name:
Designation:	
CNIC:	Designation:
	CNIC:

Note: This Agreement is a Draft Agreement subject to change in terms and conditions upon negotiation with the successful bidder during the award of the agreement. The bidders should only follow the terms of reference and instructions given in this RFP document for submission of their bids.

Integrity Pact - Annexure C

DECLARATION OF FEES, COMMISSION AND BROKERAGE ETC. PAYABLE BY THE SUPPLIERS OF GOODS, SERVICES & WORKS IN CONTRACTS WORTH RS.10.00 MILLION OR MORE

Contract Number: Dated:

Contract Value:

Contract Title:

[Name of Supplier] hereby declares that it has not obtained or induced the procurement of any contract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit from Government of Pakistan or any administrative subdivision or agency thereof or any other entity owned or controlled by it (GoP) through any corrupt business practice.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing [Name of Supplier] represents and warrants that it has fully declared the brokerage, commission, fee etc. paid or payable to anyone and not given or agreed to give and shall not give or agree to give to anyone within or outside Pakistan either directly or indirectly through any natural or juridical person, including its affiliate, agent, associate, broker, consultant, director, promoter, shareholder, sponsor or subsidiary, any commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback, whether described as consultations fee or otherwise, with the object of obtaining or inducing the procurement of a contract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit in whatsoever form from GoP, except that which has been expressly declared pursuant hereto.

[Name of Supplier] certifies that it has made and will make full disclosure of all agreements and arrangements with all persons in respect of or related to the transaction with GoP and has not taken any action or will not take any action to circumvent the above declaration, representative or warranty.

[Name of Supplier] accepts full responsibility and strict liability for making and false declaration, not making full disclosure, misrepresenting fact or taking any action likely to defeat the purpose of this declaration, representation and warranty. It agrees that any contract, right interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit obtained or procured as aforesaid shall, without prejudice to any other right and remedies available to GoP under any law, contract or other instrument, be voidable at the option of GoP.

Notwithstanding any rights and remedies exercised by GoP in this regard, [Name of Supplier] agrees to indemnify GoP for any loss or damage incurred by it on account of its corrupt business practices and

further pay compensation to GoP in an amount equivalent to ten time the sum of any commission,
gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback given by [Name of Supplier] as aforesaid for the purpose of
obtaining or inducing the procurement of any contract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation or
benefit in whatsoever form from GoP.

[Buyer] [Seller/Supplier]